
Bon Secours ,..,......,,,.._.,_, 

M:23-54 
Montgomery County, Maryland 

The property known as Bon Secours is located on the north side of 

Brookeville Road, 1/4-mile east of the crossroads community of 

Mt. Zion in rural, eastern Montgomery County, Maryland. The 

property includes, at its center, an Italianate-style, pre-Civil 

War-era dwelling, and seven related agricultural buildings and 

.associated domestic outbuildings neatly grouped behind it. The 

main house is reached by a semi-circular, tree-lined drive, that 

is set well back from Brookeville Road, and is surrounded by 

cultivated fields. Bon Secours, associated with two of 

Montgomery, County's most well-respected founding families (the 

~ Riggs afid Griffiths), survives as an excellent example of an 

intact, mid-19th-century rural estate in Montgomery County. The 

property meets Criterion C of the Maryland Inventory of Historic 

Properties and the National Register of Historic Places. 
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MD INVENTORY OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES 
=================================================================== 
1. Name of Property 
=================================================================== 
historic name Bon Secours; Hollywood 
common/other name 
=================================================================== 
2. Location 
=================================================================== 
street & number 4901 Brookeville Rd Not for publication 
city or town Brookeville vicinity......X state Maryland 
county Mont~omery code zip code 20833 

code MD 

=================================================================== 
3. State/Federal Agency Certification N/A 
=================================================================== 
=================================================================== 
4. National Park Service Certification N/A 
=================================================================== 
=================================================================== 
5. Classification 
=================================================================== 
Ownership of Property (Check all that apply) 

_X_ private 
public-local 
public-State 

.r-. public-Federal 

Category of Property (Check only one box) 
_x_ building(s) 

district 
site 
structure 
object 

Number of Resources within Property 
Contributing Noncontributing 

__ 8_ buildings 
sites 
structures 
objects 

__ 8_ Total 

Is this property listed in the National Register? 
Yes Name of Listing No ______ _ 
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Montgomery County, Maryland 

=================================================================== 
6. Function or Use 
=================================================================== 
Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions) 

Cat: DOMESTIC . Sub: Single Dwelling 
SUBSISTENCE/AGRICULTURE =B=a=r=n~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions) 
Cat: DOMESTIC Sub: Single Dwelling 

=================================================================== 
7. Description 
================================================================= 
Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions) 

Italianate 

Materials (Enter categories from instructions) 
f oundation.~S~t~o~n=e~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
roof Cross gable: asphalt shingles 
walls Wood frame:German siding and vinyl 
other 

Narrative Description (Describe the historic and current condition 
of the property.) 

See Continuation Sheet No. 7-1 
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=================================================================== 
8. Statement of Significance 
=================================================================== 
Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark "x" in one or more 
boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for National 
Register listing) 

A 

B 

_X_ C 

D 

Property is associated with events that have made a 
significant contribution to the broad patterns of 
our history. 

Property is associated with the lives of persons 
significant in our past. 

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics 
of a type, period, or method of construction or 
represents the work of a master, or possesses high 
artistic values, or represents a significant and 
distinguishable entity whose components lack 
individual distinction. 

Property has yielded, or is likely to yield 
information important in prehistory or history. 

Criteria Considerations (Mark "X" in all the boxes that apply.) 

A owned by a religious institution or used for 
religious purposes. 

B removed from its original location. 

C a birthplace or a grave. 

D a cemetery. 

E a reconstructed building, object, or structure. 

F a commemorative property. 

G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance 
within the past SO years. 
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================================================================= 
Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions) 

Architecture 

Period of Signif icance-"'c~i~r~c=a""-~1~8~5~5"--~~~~~~~~~-

Significant Dates circa 1855 

Significant Person (Complete if Criterion B is marked above) 

Cultural Affiliation 

Architect/Builder~u=n=k~n=o~w~n~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Narrative Statement of Significance (Explain the significance of 
the property.) 

See Continuation Sheet No. 8-1 
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=================================================================== 
9. Major Bibliographical References 
=================================================================== 
(Cite the books, articles, legal records, and other sources used in 
preparing this form.) 

Boyd, T. H. S., History of Montgomery County, 1879. 
Baltimore, MD: Clearfield Comp., 1989. 

Reprint. 

Farquhar, Roger Brooke. Old Homes and History of Montgomery 
County, MD. Silver Spring, MD., 1952, 1962. 

Genealogical Abstracts, Montgomery County Sentinel 1855-1899. 

MacMaster, Richard K. and Ray Eldon Hiebert. A Grateful 
Remembrance: The Story of Montgomery County, Maryland, 1776-1976. 
Rockville, MD.: Montgomery County Historical Society, 1976. 

Montgomery County Historical Society, Rockville, MD., Vertical 
Files. 

Montgomery County Land Records, Montgomery County, Maryland. 

Mutual Assurance Society Records, Montgomery County Historical 
Society. 

Nesbitt, Martha C. and Mary Reading Miller. Chronicles of Sandy 
Spring Friends Meeting and Environs. Sandy Spring, MD., 1987. 

Noble, Allen G. and Richard K. Cleek. The Old Barn Book: A Field 
Guide to North American Barns and other Farm Structures. New 
Brunswick, NJ: Rutgers University Press, 1995. 

Sandy Spring Museum, Sandy Spring, Maryland, Vertical Files. 

Maps and Drawings and Photographs 

Hopkins, G.M., comp. Atlas of Fifteen Miles around Washington, 
including the County of Montgomery, Maryland, 1879. Reprint. 
Rockville, MD.: Montgomery County Historical Society, 1975. 

Martenet, Simon L. Martenet and Bond's Map of Montgomery County, 
1865. 

Photograph of Bon Secours, circa 1900-1910 (ex collection Samuel 
Riggs, IV, Sandy Spring Museum, vertical files). 

Photograph of Bon Secours, circa 1981 (Sandy Spring Museum, 
vertical files) 
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10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of Property--=1'-"9"""'6"--=a'"""c'""r~e=s ____________ _ 

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the 
property.) 
The property occupies Parcel 850 on Tax Map HU 123 in Montgomery 
County, MD. and includes 196 acres. 

Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected.) 

The property includes all of that land historically associated with 
Bon Secours. 

=================================================================== 
11. Form Prepared By 

name/title Kimberly Prothro Williams. Architectural Historian 
organi z at ion---"-M.._-_.N..,_C=P-=P~C"--------------- date October 19 . 19 9 8 
street & number 8787 Georgia Avenue telephone 301/563-3403 
city or town Silver Spring state __MIL_ zip code 20910 
=================================================================== 
12. Property Owner 

name D S. and Sylvia Nash 
street & number 4901 Brookeville Road 
city or town Brookeville 

telephone 
state MD zip code 20833 
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name of property 
Montgomery County. MD 
county and state 

================================================================== 

The property known as "Bon Secours" is located on the north side of 
Brookeville Road, 1/4-mile east of the crossroads community of Mt. 
Zion in rural, eastern Montgomery County, Maryland. The property 
includes, at its center, an Italianate-style, pre-Civil War-era 
dwelling and seven related agricultural buildings and associated 
domestic outbuildings. The main house is reached by a semi­
circular, tree-lined drive, that is set well back from Brookeville 
Road, and is surrounded by cultivated fields. 

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION 

At the center of Bon Secours and facing south to Brookeville Road, 
is a large, 2-1/2-story Italianate:--style frame dwelling. The 
dwelling, which consists of a principal, three-bay main block and 
contemporaneous rear wing1 to the north, is set upon a random-laid 
stone foundation and is covered with a cross gable roof. The wood 
walls are clad with vinyl siding, except at the second story of the 
front facade where the original German siding remains intact. The 
house is characterized by its large, round-arched windows, its 
central gable and its expansive porch. 

Exterior Description 

The south elevation is divided into three bays. The first story 
consists of a central entry and flanking windows, while the second 
story features windows in all bays. The central entry, reached 
from the raised porch, has a pair of two-paneled doors flanked by 
five-light sidelights and surmounted by a two-light transom. The 
windows to either side of the entry have 8/12 sash, both with a 
heavy central muntin giving them the appearance of paired windows, 
and large wood trim with a half-round profile. The second story 
has a round-arched tri-partite window on center and two round­
arched windows to either side, all surrounded by wood trim with a 
large, half-round profile. The tri-partite window consists of 
three, 4/4 sash, the central sash being taller and wider than the 
flanking ones. The side windows have 8/8 sash with heavy central 
muntins and solid wood shutters. A half-round louvered opening 
decorates the attic level of the central gable, while deep, 
undecorated eaves extend well beyond the cornice line. These eaves 
were historically decorated with a scroll-sawn barge board detail 
visible on historic photographs, but which are no longer intact. 
The roof is clad with asphalt shingles and features two interior 
brick chimneys. 

1 Although built contemporaneously, the rear wing was entirely rebuilt in 
1958 having suffered significant damage due to a severe tornado. 
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The three-bay porch with square wood columns supporting a flat 
porch roof and set upon a raised brick foundation was rebuilt in 
recent years. 2 The rebuilt porch is similar to and presumably 
based upon the original porch, shown in historic photos of the 
property taken around the turn of this century. Although similar 
in overall form and scale, the rebuilt porch lacks the details of 
the original, such as the turned balusters on the porch railing. 

The west elevation of the main block is two bays deep and features, 
most notably, a projecting window bay in the front bay of the first 
story. This polygonal bay has three long 6/9 windows in each wall 
surface. Directly above the bay window on the second story is one 
large 8/12 window with a thick central muntin. The rear bay has, 
on both the first and second stories, a single 6/6 window with a 
thick central muntin. A half-round louvered vent is located on 
center of this wall surface at the attic level. 

The east elevation is similarly two bays deep, but lacks the 
:~ projecting bay window. Here, one 8/12 window and one 8/8 window 

are located in the front and rear bays, respectively, of the first 
story, while two 8/8 windows light the second story level. 

The two-story rear ell which projects from the north elevation of 
the main block of the house was rebuilt in 1958 following severe 
tornado damage to the original structure. The ell, which extends 
across two of the house's three-bay width, is four bays deep, each 
bay consisting of a single, 6 / 6 window. A wide, four-bay-deep 
porch is built along the east elevation of the ell, while a 
narrower porch extends along the west elevation. At the second 
story of the north elevation of this rear ell, a set of outdoor 
stairs leads to an enclosed entry vestibule. These stairs and 
entry vestibule, added in recent years, provide access to an 
apartment accommodated in the second story of the rear ell of the 
house. 

The interior of the house was not surveyed. However, based upon 
existing documentation, the house features a wide, central hall 
with a black walnut stairway with persimmon risers and 14-foot 
ceilings and 12-foot windows. The house also retains its original 
random-width wood floors, its six original mantels, five ceiling 
medallions, and silver-plated door hinges. The ceiling medallions 
and door hinges were apparently completed in 1860 by a Bavarian 
craftsman who also built a gold-leaf frame mantel mirror in the 
west front room of the house. 

2 The rebuilt porch replaced a double-story portico which was probably built 
in the mid-20th century and which stood at least until 1981. (A 1981 photo of the 
house shows this double-story portico.) 
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================================================================== 

AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS AND DOMESTIC OUTBUILDINGS: 

Immediately east and north of the main dwelling is a group of six 
agricultural buildings and domestic outbuildings, including three 
barns, a chicken coop, a stone spring house and an unidentified 
building (possibly a farm off ice, or servants quarters) . A seventh 
building--a barn--is located in the cultivated fields to the north 
of the complex. A short description of each of these buildings is 
provided below: 

1) Drive-thru corn crib. The drive-thru corn crib is located 
immediately east of the main dwelling, and faces a dirt farm lane 
which leaves the main drive to the fields beyond. It is a frame 
structure clad with vertical wood siding and is set upon a rubble 
stone foundation. It is covered with a standing seam metal gable 
roof with central dormer windows and side shed extensions. 

2) Bank Barn. A large frame bank barn is located just beyond 
~ the drive-thru corn crib along the farm lane. It is set upon a 

stone foundation and has vertical board walls and louvred window 
openings. 

3) Stone pumphouse. The pumphouse is located immediately east 
of the main dwelling. It is a rubble stone structure with a 
standing seam metal gable roof. 

4) Kitchen. The kitchen dependency is located immediately 
behind the house. Rectangular in plan and featuring two rooms, the 
kitchen is constructed of frame and is covered with a gable roof. 
A stone end chimney with a brick shaft is located on the north 
gable end of the building. 

5) Chicken coop. The chicken coop is a frame structure with 
a monitor roof. 

6) A double corn crib. This frame structure has two cribs and 
a gable roof. 

7) Barn: This large frame bank barn is located in a field well 
beyond the domestic complex and not further surveyed. 
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================================================================== 
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Bon Secours, associated with two of Montgomery County's most well­
respected families (the Riggs and Griffiths), survives as an 
excellent example of an intact, mid-19th-century rural estate in 
Montgomery County. The property includes an impressive Italianate­
style dwelling, and several associated buildings (both domestic and 
agricultural), cohesively grouped behind the main dwelling. The 
property meets Criterion C of the Maryland Inventory of Historic 
Properties and the National Register of Historic Places. 

Historic Context 

Originally part of the larger "Addition to Brooke Grove" and owned 
by Thomas Brooke in the 18th century, Bon Secours traces its 
origins as an independent property to 1861. At that time, Nicholas 
R. Griffith received title to a 172-acre tract of the "Addition to 
Brooke Grove" following the property's sale at public auction in 
1859. Griffith, who named the property "Hollywood" for its trees, 
built the impressive Italianate-style dwelling in early 1861. 
Nicholas R. Griffith, a well-established tobacco broker in 
Baltimore, apparently intended to use the house as a summer 
retreat. Local history contends, however, that because the family 
were Southern sympathizers, the house was immediately occupied upon 
its completion. 3 Also according to local history, the frame 
structure and wood siding are of fir imported by "Clipper" from the 
West Coast, thence hauled from Baltimore by oxen. 

Nicholas Griffith died circa 1864, leaving his property, valued at 
$12,000 to his wife, Mary Susan (Jones) Griffith. 4 Mary Susan 
Griffith sold the property in 1871 to Daniel H. Gaither. By 1879, 
Gaither had improved the property to include the semi-circular, 
tree-lined drive and two buildings not shown on the 1865 Martenet 
and Bond map. 5 After making these improvements, Gaither held onto 
the property for several years, before selling it in 1885 to 
Soloman E. Yearly. The property was held by Soloman Yearly from 

3 Roger Brooke Farqhuar, Old Homes and History of Montgomery County, 
Maryland, p. 104. 

4 The 1865 Martenet and Bond map of Montgomery County identifies the 
property as that of Susan Griffith. Biographical research indicates that Mary 
Susan Griffith, the wife of Nicholas R. Griffith, died in Baltimore County in 
1899. (Genealogical Abstracts, Montgomery County Sentinel, 1855-1899, 158.) 

5 The semi-circular drive is clearly shown on the 1879 G.M. Hopkins map 
which identifies the property as the Daniel H. Gaither residence. 
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================================================================== 
1885 to 1905 before being acquired by Samuel Riggs. The property 
remained in Riggs family ownership until 1937. Since that time, 
the property, which has retained its acreage, has changed hands 
numerous times. Since 1979, the property has been owned by Donald 
S. and Sylvia Nash. 
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=================================================================== 
HISTORIC CONTEXT: 

Geographic Organization: Piedmont 

Chronological/Development Period 
Transition, 1815-1870 

(s): Agricultural-Industrial 

Prehistoric/Historic Period Theme (s) : 

RESOURCE TYPE(S) 

Category: 

Historic Environment: 

Historic Function (s) : 

Known Design Source: 

Architecture, Landscape Architecture, and 
Community Planning 

Building 

Rural 

DOMESTIC/Single Dwelling 
DOMESTIC/Secondary Structure 
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE/Barn 

Unknown 
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Bon Secours 
name of property 
Montgomery County. MD 
county and state 

=================================================================== 
Chain of Title: 

Bon Secours was derived from "Addition to Brooke Grove" in 1794 
when Dorothy Brooke, Thomas Brooke's niece acquired the parcel. 

December 31, 1824 

April 24, 1861 

May 3, 1871 

October 1, 1885 

1905 

December 21, 1907 

Richard Brooke, Mary B. Brooke, 
Thomas P. Stabler and Elizabeth P. 
Stabler to Richard Watkins. For 
$1500; being part of Addition to 
Brooke Grove. Liber Y Folio 45 

John Brewer and George Peter, 
Trustees to Nicholas R. Griffith. 
(Richard Watkins died, circa 1842 
and left all of his real estate to 
his son Gassaway Watkins. Gassaway 
Watkins died a widower circa 1859, 
leaving his estate to his daughter 
and sole heir, Elizabeth B. Watkins, 
11 years old.) Property sold at 
auction October 17, 1859 to Enoch B. 
Hutton. Hutton now wishes to 
substitute Nicholas R. Griffith as 
purchaser in this deed. Liber JGH 8 
Folio 371. 

Mary S. Griffith to Daniel H. 
Gaither. (Nicholas Griffith died 
circa 1864, left farm to wife Mary 
S. Griffith.) Liber EBP 8 Folio 349 
and 351 (for $12,000). 

Samuel 
Yearly. 

H. Gaither to Soloman 
Liber EBP 35 Folio 341. 

E. 

Bond of Conveyance. Melissa J. 
Yearly (married) acknowledges 
herself bound to Samuel Riggs (II) 
in the amount of $7700.00 of which 
$3700 has been paid. She gives a 
note for balance of $4000.00 on the 
property. Liber 180 Folio 245. 

Soloman E. Yearly to Samuel Riggs 
II. Liber 196 Folio 393 



January 11, 1915 

August 16, 1937 

November 2, 1945 

February 24, 1948 

April 15, 1964 

1969 

August 15, 1979 

Samuel Riggs and wife to Douglas H. 
Riggs (their son) . Liber 196 Folio 
333 and Liber 252 Folio 1321. 

Douglas H. Riggs to Mabel G. 
Hanscom. Liber 677 Folio 252. 

Mabel G. Hanscom and Ridgely F. 
Hanscom to Sydney R. Prince, Jr. 
Liber 986 Folio 311; and 

William George Dorsey to Sydney R. 
Prince, Jr. Liber 1235 Folio 83. 

Sydney R. Prince to Jerry Wolman 
and wife Ann Wolman and Earl M. 
Foreman, Sydney Tiplin and wife, 
Rena Tiplin, Stanley Reines and 
wife, Harriett Reines. Liber 3209 
Folio 190. 

Earl M. Foreman buys of Stanley 
Reines et us and Sidney Tiplin et 
ux. Liber 3862 Folio 601. 

Earl M. Foreman to Donald S. Nash 
and Sylvia K. Nash, tenants in 
common. Property contains 178 
acres. Liber 5382 Folio 379. 
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Name: SANDY SPRING 
Date: 7/13/99 
Scale: 1 inch equals 2000 feet 

Location: 039° 11' 12.9" N 077° 05' 58.4" W 
Caption: BON SECOURS (M: 23-54) 

4901 Brookeville Rd. 
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ANOIO .. Hl .. TO .. IC1 
Bon Secours 

. 
12. LOCATION 

' 

-'nu;1.. T ANC' NUM•S"• 

(.\TV OA 10Wl41 

Brookeville 
Sf ATll: I COUNTY· . 

Maryland Montqomerv 

13. CLASSIFICATION 
. .. 

CATEGORY 
OW~ERSHIP STATUS 

ACCESSIBLE 
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(~. OWNER OF PROPEPTY 
0W"fF.f111 N Atr.t£. ; 

Foreman 
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~ LOcj110tf'OF ':.fo"-L :5ifsc.RIPTl~lJ - - rv: 

COUAT~OUS& nrQIS1H~ or DEl!:l)S ~.TC. 
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il'hc Maryland-National 
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Iii Good 0 E.xc:ell,.nt O Fair 
CONDITION 

(Ch.,ck One) 

(Check One) 

0 Deteriorahnl 

I 
0 Ruins 0 ·UnexpoHd 

(Check One) 

• Altered 0 Undterecl 0 Moved Ill Original Site 

three-bay, main(south) facaae. The central entrance bay has 

I tall 

'wall 

from 

sidelights flanking the doorway and transom light; solid 

(rather than mouldings or architrave), divides the doorway 

the lights. The ground floor windows are 8/12 double-hung 

sash with heaV'.l central muntins giving the appearance of double 

indows. The second floor windows have semi-circular arched 

heads. The central bay has three lights; the central taller 

and wider than those flanking; all three have 4/4 double hung 

sash. 'rhe side bay windows are 8/!i _....,Jnle hung sash with heavy 

central muntins. The front porch is two stories with a pedi-

m 
m 

z 

.ented roof supported by square columns. The eaves are plain. c: 

To the north is a two story wing with a three bay east 

acade. The two north bays are doors with narrow transom 

ights. Windows are_6/6 double hung sash. 

Large chimneys rise along the central hall walls in the 

a.in house block. The chimneys of the rear wing are small and 

f recent construction. 

outbuildings include a frame bankbarn on a stone founda­

·ion, a double corn crib, a frame icehouse and a stone spring-

iouse. 
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Bon Secours 

8. SIGNIFICANCE (addendum) 

SPECIFIC DATES 1855 

(From Farquhar, 1962, History of Montgomery County, pp. 104-105) 

Although mere seasonal occupancy had been first intended the ominous 
development of the civil conflict in the year after construction led Nicholas Griffith and 
his wife Mary Susan (Jones) Griffith, who were already identified with this part of 
Montgomery County, to assume permanent residence at "Bon Secours." Thus the house 
has been continuously occupied for just over 100 years. 

Nicholas B. Griffith received title to the 172 acres by conveyance of March 13, 
1860, from his friends John Brewer and George Peter, representing Elizabeth B. 
Watkins, surviving wife of Gassoway Watkins. (Earlier this land, apart of the Addition 
to Brooke Grove, had derived from Thomas Brooke to a niece, Dorothy Brooke, via a 
trustee, General Hopkins (1794) .) Following the Griffith acquisition, this property was 
next conveyed in 1871 by Mary S. Griffith to Daniel Gaither, and was confirmed to him 
by Charles C. Hutton and Richard Waters. It was held by Solomon E. Yearly from 1885 
to 1905 when Samuel Riggs acquired it. He conveyed the property to his son, Douglas 
H. Riggs, in 1915 following the marriage of Douglas to Chloe Landsdale. In 1937 it was 
acquired by Mabel G. Hanscom and her husband. They conveyed to the present owners, 
Elizabeth Herndon and Sydney Rhodes Prince, Jr., in 1945, just after World War II 
ended. 

The present owner, Mr. Prince is the ninth descendant of Edward Prince, who 
was the first landowner of what is now the City of Petersburg, Virginia. (Tyler's 
Quarterly Magazine, Vol. XVI, p. 50; and W&MO, Vol. 3, 2nd series, pp. 10-11.) Mr. 
Prince has two sons, Sydney R. III, married Anne Macpherson, October 7, 1961; and 
Robin H., both graduates of Princeton and University of Virginia. 
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104 HISTORIC MONTGOMERY COUNTY, 'MARYLAND 

State Firemen's Association. After twenty 
years as owner, Brown in 1945 sold the home to 
David A. Shober, 'vho in 1950 resold to Perry 

' Patterson, a vVashington attorney, the owner. 
M:r. and Mrs. Patterson have six children, one 

son at the University of Virginia, and three 
boys and one girl in Sherwood. One girl is not 
in school as yet. l\fr. Patterson obtained his 

law degree from Georgetown University, and 
feels at home in Sandy Spring. Mrs. Patterson, 
went to George School, and has many ties in 
the area and expresses pleasure that they were 
able to find a picturesque, and cherished, aged 
home, of .charm, with a few acres of garden and 

.· lawn, with an old spring house, in the setting, 
enshrined in ancient trees. 

GOOD OLD HORSE AND BUGGY DAYS 
By R. H. Farquhar 

Bon Secotlrs ·~ 

T HE picture shows the J!Jast side of the are lit~i•ally ·silver plated-Le., hinges eovereJ 
manor house unchanged sinee its con- . with separate plates of solid silver. 

·. struction just prior to the Civil War. It ''.rhe spaciousness of the interior of this housn 
was built by Nicholas Griffith, a well-established is also evidenced in the wide main hallway 
tobacco broker 'in Baltimore. Both the frame traversing the house from front to back, in 
and the Dutch siding are of fir imported by' normal plantation-house style. A distinguished 
"Clipper;' from the West Coast, thence hauled·· stairway.of black walnut (with persimon wood 
from Baltimore bv oxen. risers) is,swung'upward in the back hall, somc-

This house, ori~nally known frqm its trees as what in the manner of the famous stairway of 
"Hollywood," was intended only as a summer the Carters at "Shirley" on the James River. 
retreat, but. the advent of the war dictated its Also notable on the first floor is a handsome 
immediate occupancy on completion f'arly in three-sided dormer window, overlooking a large 
1861. It is believed that the family .. were meadow-this was clearly the nearest thing 100 
Southern sympathizers. Fortunately it had 'years ago to today's "picture-window." TliP 
been solidly constructed with a triple wall rest. marble mantels of the fireplaces in the two 
ing upon a complete stone foundation. Although downstl:lirs l~ying rooms, as well as the one iu 
archltecturally it is a "main" house, to the the commodiqus dining room, are all originals. 
South, and a "wing," to the North, all of it was· At least one is Italian marble. All five floral 
constructed at op.e time. The "wing," of course, medalion chandelier-bases of plaster on the fin;t 
does not share the "plantation-house" dimen- floor'<:~eilings are originals. (The future presN­
sions and appointments of the main house; v.ation of these beautiful medallions-dependent 
namely, twelve foot windows, fourteen foot on aging plaster ceilings-presents a trying 
ceilings, random width heart pine floors, arches, problem.) An original chandelier hangs in the 
and sevetal double doors having hinges which dining room. The gold leaf frame of the baronial 

·1·····. l 

' .~ 
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mirror in tltt• "'est room was c>arved 011 the 
premises in 1860 by the Bava riau craftsman 
who was nJso rC'sponRihlc for the mNlallions. 

r pstairs in the "main houi::e,, there arc thrcC' 
ma:-.ter hcdroU1m;, <•ac•h having a firepla<'e and" 
ori~innl munt<'ls. Thl' lii~h eeilings upstairs arc 
matc-hc<l IJy gn•at windows which reaC'h low 
lowarcl the flool'. The Ntpacious upstairs hall 
arnl I he 01>en w<>Jl of the Htain·ase indicate the 
ard1itel't's awnr<'JU'SS of air l'irculation prin­
c·i plt!:s. 

'l'hc "wing" waR rebuilt in l!l58 with nll of 
its original intt,grity following se,·crc tornado­
ilatuage to it. 'Yl1il<' Jimit('<l changes were made 
insi1le the ''wing" to a<'<'ommodatC' tile hnth­
roorns ruJ<l central air conditioning, no <'hangc 
of auy kind was made in the exterior-to that 
rrnl the contrswtor found it nec•essarv to have 
th<' dnpboards of "Dutch Ai<ling" (do~ble inter­
loc•ke<l) spe<'ially milled. In the "win~" th<.' 
st~ Jc of the t•om1try pantry with original firc­
plnN• and pot hook were not altered. 

.\lf hou~h nwrc seusonnl oc·cupancy hnd been 
lirst inten<le<l tll<' ominou1:1 development of the 
1•i\'il 1•onflict in the Yl'ar after consfructiou lc<l 
:Ni ..Jwlns Gritli th niul his wife Mary Susan 
(,Juucs) Griffith, who were alreu<ly identified 
with this part of Montgomery County, to as­
:-:umc perma11e11t reAidence nt "Bon Secours." r Thus the house uas been \'Ontiuuously occupied 
for just over 100 yenrs. 

Nicholul:i R. Griffith rct'<'iYl•d title to the 172 
acres liy t'ouveyau<·c of March 13, 1860, from 
his friends ,J olm Brewer and George Peter, 
r<•presl'uting 1~~lizuhcth B. \Vatkins, sm·,·iving 
wift.• of Gassoway w· ntki11s. ( 14~arli<'r this iaud, 
apart of the Addition to Brooke Grove, hacl 
derived from Thomas Brooke lo a uiec>e, 
Dorothy Brookt•, vin a tl'nstec, General Hopkins 
(1794).) l!,ollowing the Griffith acquisition, this 
property was next c·ouveycd iu 1871 hy Mury K 
Griffith to Daniel Oaitlwr, and was confirull'd 
to him hy Clmrl<•s C. Hutton and Hit•harcl 
'Vaters. It was held hy 8olomon K Yearly from 
1885 to H>03 when 8annw1 Riggs at•quireu it. 
Uc rouvc)'l'<l the prnpcrty to his son, Douglas 
H. Rig~s, i11 HH5 following the marriagt' of 
Douglas to Chloe Lun<lsdale. In rn:n it was tl<' ­

quired by :Muhel G. IIans<·om and her lmshaucl. 
They cou\'eyed to the prl'scnt ownC'rs, Elbmheth 
HC'rndon nn<l Sydney Hhodt•s Prim·e, ,Jr.. in 
1945, just ni't<'l' \\.,.ol'ltl "'ar 11 ended. 

'fhc Jll'<'Sent ownt•r, Mr. Priuce is tlw ninth 
dcsC'cn<lunt of I•;dwn nl PritH•e, who wus th<.' first 
laud owner of whRt is now th<' Cit~· of Pt•lcrs­
burg, Yirginia. (Tyll'r 's Quarterly Magazine, 
Vol. X\'l, p. 50; nnd \\&MQ, \'ol. 3, :?ml Sl•ri<'~, 
PP. 10-11 ). :\Jr. Prim•e has two ::.ons: Sydney R. 
III, m111·1·il•d A nm• M ncplterson, O<'tohC'r 7, Hlfn : 
and Rohh1 II., both graduates of Priu<'eton ancl 
Unh-ersit y of Yirgiuia. 
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